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OPERATIONS-RELATED QUESTIONS 
1. Who is the county’s current on-site medical provider? WellPath LLC 
 
2. How long has the county’s current on-site medical provider held the contract? Since October 1, 2018 
 
3. Are there any exclusions to hiring current medical staff members by the current contractor? Yes 
 
4. Are there currently any open medical staff positions (i.e. permanent team member has not been hired 
for that role)? Yes 
 
5. If there are current open medical staff positions, please state the hours per week and shift to be 
covered (i.e. LPN 40 hrs/week, nights). Mental Health Provider, approx. 32 hours per week. 
 
6. Are there any COVID type of duties tasked to the medical staff other than normal patient monitoring 
and/or symptom treatment? They perform COVID testing upon commitment of detainee. 
 
7. Is an electronic medical record (EMR) currently in use by medical staff? And if yes, does this system 
belong to the County? Yes; no it belongs to provider. 
 
8. If an EMR is in place and is NOT owned by the County, does the County have an exit strategy to allow 
access to all medical record information to a new incoming Vendor? Yes – current contract states 
medical records are to stay with Sheriff upon contract termination. 
 
9. What is the timing to receive approval from the County for new hire applicants? Sheriff and/or Chief 
Deputy have approval authority. Approval timing is contingent on processing background checks and 
other security checks prior to approval.  
 
10. Please provide year to date numbers/statistics regarding the health services of: a. Number of sick 
calls by month  
 

b. Number of H&Ps completed by month stats maintained by provider  
c. Number of patients screened for suicide ideation stats maintained by provider 
d. Number of patients seen by the MD/Provider by month stats maintained by provider 
e. Number of patients seen by the DDS by month approx. 20-30 per month 
f. Number of off-site send outs by months 96 since January; 158 in the past 12 months 

 
11. Please provide a list of any equipment to be removed by the current vendor should they not be 
selected. Equipment information covered in RFP on page 14. 
 
12. Please provide the average number of females incarcerated in the facility. Approx. 40 right now due 
to COVID; approx. 50-60 pre-COVID. 
 



13. Does your site utilize Safekeepers for inmates requiring medical or mental health treatment that 
could be provided elsewhere? If so, how many have been placed in Safekeepers in the last year? Yes, 
when available and approved; less than six in the past year. 
 
14. Does your inmate handbook specify that the inmate is responsible for medical issues related to pre-
existing and self-inflicted injuries? No. 
 
15. Will the claims for the inmate population being held at Brunswick for the U.S. Marshals, North 
Carolina Department of Corrections, Other Counties, and Juveniles need to be tracked and billed to the 
responsible party? Yes. 
 
16. What is the current medical staffing matrix for the Brunswick County Jail?  
 
 

 
 
 
PHARMACY-RELATED QUESTIONS 
 
1. Cooperative procurement contracts create value for county jails by providing access to an already 
competitively solicited agreement that is accessible to Brunswick County if you are already a member 
facility to a cooperative purchasing organization. If not, membership is free and signing up can be done 
within minutes online. Is Brunswick County a MMCAP Member Facility with access to MMCAP Contract 
MMS17017 for correctional specific medication dispensing and pharmacy program management 
services? No. 
 



2. If so, would the County consider removing the pharmacy component from the RFP and accessing 
MMCAP Contract MMS17017 (which has already been competitively solicited) and accessible to 
Brunswick County in order to meet you current medication dispensing and pharmacy program 
management needs? No, but could be up for discussion with the awarded vendor. 
 
3. In the RFP, the last paragraph of page 2 states “Brunswick County and the Brunswick County Sheriff 
reserve the right to reject, in whole or in part and without prejudice or explanation, any and all 
proposals. Brunswick County and the Brunswick County Sheriff further reserve the right to waive 
informalities or to amend the specifications in this RFP and request new proposals at any time prior to 
the award of a contract.” The last paragraph on page 9 states that, “Brunswick County and the 
Brunswick County Sheriff reserve the right to negotiate and refine a final Scope of Contract from the 
selected qualified Proposers.” Page 22 item 15. NON-EXCLUSIVITY states that, “Provider acknowledges 
that County is not obligated to contract solely with Provider for the Services covered under this 
Agreement.” The RFP also indicates that the County is looking for a solution that is most advantageous 
and in the best interest of Brunswick County.  Independently contracting your pharmacy services has 
many potential advantages and benefits over incorporating pharmacy into a comprehensive health 
services model. As an individual discipline, a pharmacy will provide a checks and balance system that will 
independently monitor for and directly report to Brunswick County, any irregular prescriber ordering 
habits, excessive medication utilization, cost effectiveness of medication selection, and compliance with 
local, North Carolina, and federal laws, rules and regulations. Additionally, a pharmacy acting as an 
individual discipline will independently provide clinical services, formulary management, technology 
innovations, meaningful reporting, and cost avoidance strategies directly to the Jail resulting in a 
potentially lower cost to Brunswick County. Perhaps most importantly, if there were ever a need to 
change your medical services provider, there would be less disruption to the overall system with an 
independent pharmacy contract. Would the County permit an informational response to your RFP along 
with a cost plus dispensing fee-pricing model from industry-leading vendors that specialize in 
correctional-based medication dispensing and pharmaceutical program management? See answer 
below. 
 
4. If so, would you consider adding RFP language for medical bidders to include a comprehensive pricing 
model that includes pharmaceuticals and a pricing option excluding pharmaceuticals so that projected 
pharmacy costs are clearly benchmarked and documented? No to changing language in RFP, but bidder 
can provide cost breakdown of system with and without pharmaceuticals to help see how it differs. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS QUESTIONS 
 
1. In order to best understand the perspective of each individual on the evaluation committee, can you 
please share the name and title of each person that will be involved in the selection process? Members 
of the Brunswick County Sheriff’s Office Command Staff. 
 
2. Will a final decision be made by the evaluation committee or will the committee provide a 
recommendation to a final decision maker? The committee’s recommendation will be provided to the 
Sheriff, who would present to the Board of Commissioners for final approval. 
 



3. If so, who is the final decision maker regarding an award? The Board of Commissioners approves the 
selected vendor and awards the contract.  
 
 
RFP DOCUMENT QUESTIONS 
 
1. Page 16, item D. requires bidders to maintain Professional Liability insurance in the amount of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. Would Brunswick County accept a Professional Liability policy written on a 
claims made form for the same amount instead? No; accepting liability insurance on a claims made basis 
is not in the county’s best interest and would not be acceptable.  
 
2. Exhibit “A” Scope of Services/Fees is a blank page, is something missing from this page? What is the 
expectation of the responder? Are they required to use this page or may they provide the Scope of 
Services and Fees in a separate format? The agreement attached is simply a sample document to put the 
potential contractor on notice as to what agreement we will expect them to sign. Exhibit “A” is only a 
placeholder for what will eventually be the Scope of Services/Fees attached to the awarded contract. 
That may be the contractor’s actual proposal or something similar. Nothing is missing. 
 
3. Exhibit “B” asks for a physician license number. A potential vendor will not secure such a professional 
until award of contract and consideration of the current provider after discussion with the Sheriff. This 
applies to the medical and mental health program. May this information be submitted during the 
transition? We are not asking for the license number(s) at this time. Again, that is just a blank sample 
document. The license number(s) can be provided at the time the selected vendor signs the agreement.  
 
4. Are there any signed forms to be included with the proposal? There is no contract to be 
signed/included with the submitted proposal. That will come after award and internal approvals. 
However, per the requirements of the RFP, the proposer must include a signed letter of intent with their 
proposal. 
 
 


